

## WSU POLICY APPROVAL COVER PAGE

<b>DATE POLICY REQUEST TO PET:</b>	August 12, 2024		
<b>IS THIS A NEW POLICY OR CHANGE TO AN EXISTING POLICY?</b>	<b>NEW</b>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<b>EXISTING</b> <input checked="" type="checkbox"/>
<b>CURRENT POLICY TITLE:</b>	3.42 / Tuition Assistance Program for Employee		
<b>REVISED POLICY TITLE:</b>	3.42 / Tuition Assistance Program for Employees		
<b>LAST REVISED DATE OF POLICY:</b>	December 1, 2018		
<b>INITIATING AUTHORITY:</b>	Human Resources		
<b>SUMMARY OF POLICY OR POLICY CHANGE:</b>			

This policy is being revised to clarify the tuition assistance program for employees, including updating definitions, eligibility, requirements, and administrative procedures. In addition, the policy was reorganized and reformatted for purposes of clarification and to conform with the University's standard policy format.

Specific changes made were:

- Updated requirements for eligibility, including requiring minimum GPA rather than course related academic standing, not being on unpaid leave, and separation of employment.
- Updated the definition for benefit-eligible employee, to include teaching faculty as well as non-teaching faculty, and to clarify that ICAA employees are eligible for assistance.
- Clarified eligibility requirements and what courses/programs qualify for tuition assistance.
- Updated to require minimum GPA rather than course related academic standing.
- Updated to remove requirements related to performance evaluations because not every employee has an evaluation.
- Updated to include limitation on assistance for graduate courses.
- Clarified policy on adding and withdrawing from courses, and updated administrative procedure related to withdrawal of courses.
- Updated administrative procedure to address the prioritization process in the event of insufficient funding.
-

WSU Policy 3.15 / Internal Dispute Resolution Process  
WSU Policy 3.43 / Tuition Assistance Program for Spouses and Dependent Children

### **3.42 / TUITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM FOR EMPLOYEES**

#### **I. INITIATING AUTHORITY**

- A. Human Resources serves as the initiating authority for this policy.

#### **II. PURPOSE**

- A. The University has implemented a Tuition Assistance Program for Employees (Tuition Assistance Program) to foster the educational and professional growth of its Employees. The purpose of this policy is to set forth the requirements and limitations for eligible Employees to receive tuition assistance under the University's Tuition Assistance Program.

#### **III. POLICY**

- A. **Tuition Assistance Program.** To the extent that sufficient funding is available, the University provides tuition and infrastructure fee assistance to eligible Employees who enroll in qualifying courses at the University.
- B. **Program Eligibility.** Eligibility for the Tuition Assistance Program is limited to Employees who meet all of the following requirements and limitations:
  - 1. Employee must be Benefit-Eligible, as set forth in the definitions below.
  - 2. Employee must maintain an overall grade point average (GPA) of 2.0 for undergraduate programs or an overall GPA of 3.0 for graduate programs, which will be reviewed after final grades are entered for each completed term. Failure to meet this requirement will make the Employee ineligible for tuition assistance until the Employee's overall GPA is greater than 2.0 for undergraduate programs or 3.0 for graduate programs.
  - 3. Employees on unpaid leave or who separate from employment before their course(s) begin are not eligible for the Tuition Assistance Program.
  - 4. With the exception of the Employees of the Wichita State University

year. Assistance is also available for infrastructure fees, but is not available for any other student fees or for

**V. ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE**

A. **Applications.** To apply for the Tuition Assistance Program,

[Dispute Resolution Process](#) and [4.04 / Resolution of Internal Disputes for Faculty](#).

**VI. APPLICABLE LAWS AND ADDITIONAL RESOURCES**

- A. [K.S.A. 76-719c. Fellowships, scholarships, tuition and fee waivers; authority to grant; standards, conditions, requirements](#)
- B. [K.S.A 76-729. Residence of students for fee purposes; basic rule, certain exceptions authorized; definitions](#)
- C. [WSU Policy 3.15 / Internal Dispute Resolution Process](#)
- D. [WSU Policy 3.43 / Tuition Assistance Program for Spouses and Dependent Children](#)
- E. [WSU Policy 4.04 / Resolution of Internal Disputes for Faculty](#)

**VII. REVISION DATES**

- A. August 1, 2007
- B. December 24, 2011
- C. June 8, 2014
- D. December 01, 2018
- E. [INSERT PET APPROVED DATE]

### 3.42 / TUITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM FOR ~~EMPLOYEE~~EMPLOYEES

#### I. INITIATING AUTHORITY

A. Human Resources serves as the initiating authority for this policy.

#### II. PURPOSE

~~The purpose of this policy is to implement State law regarding the payment of tuition and other education expenses of eligible Wichita State University employees.~~

A. The University has implemented a Tuition Assistance Program for Employees (Tuition Assistance Program) to foster the educational and professional growth of its Employees. The purpose of this policy is to set forth the requirements and limitations for eligible Employees to receive tuition assistance under the University's Tuition Assistance Program.

#### III. POLICY STATEMENT

A. ~~The~~**Tuition Assistance Program.** To the extent that sufficient funding is available, ~~the~~ University may pay, from available appropriations, the actual cost of ~~provides~~ tuition and required fees in order to provide education or training for Eligible Employees, when such Enrollment is determined to be of value ~~infrastructure fee~~ assistance to

of 3.0 for graduate ~~courses~~ programs, which will be reviewed after final grades are entered for each completed term. Failure to meet this requirement will make the Employee ineligible for tuition assistance until the ~~Employee has satisfactorily passed another qualified course of the same number of hours at the Employee's expense~~Employee's overall GPA is greater than 2.0 for undergraduate programs or 3.0 for graduate programs.

~~B. A University course be considered to be of value to the State and the University and thus eligible for tuition assistance if it is determined that the course can be credited towards a degree, will provide professional growth or development for the Employee, or is job-related training.~~

3. Subject to availability of funds, assistance~~Employees on unpaid leave or who separate from employment before their course(s) begin are not eligible for the Tuition Assistance Program.~~

4. With the exception of the Employees of the Wichita State University Intercollegiate Athletic Association, Inc. (ICAA), the Employees of Controlled Affiliated Organizations and Non-Controlled Affiliated Organizations are not eligible for the Tuition Assistance Program.

C. Assistance Coverage and Limitations. Assistance is limited to covering the cost of resident tuition up to a maximum of seven (7) credit hours per semester for undergraduate ~~programs~~courses, including badges or certificates, ~~six (6) credit hours.~~ Assistance for graduate ~~programs~~ program courses, including badges or certificates, ~~or two (2) badge courses~~is capped at \$5,250 per semester, calendar year. Assistance is ~~limited to tuition cost only and does~~also available for infrastructure fees, but is not include books, available for any other student fees or for the cost of books and housing.

~~D. Tuition assistance is based on the hours of enrollment on the last day for 100% tuition refund each semester. If courses are added after the last day of the 100% refund period, no additional funds will be disbursed. If a course(s) is withdrawn, it must be done before the last day of the 100% refund period for tuition assistance funds to be applied appropriately.~~

#### D. Qualifying Courses

1. Courses that qualify for the Tuition Assistance Program include all undergraduate, graduate, badge and certificate program courses offered for credit by the University. Non-credit courses and courses offered by WSU Tech and the Center for Management Development do not qualify for the Tuition Assistance Program.

2. Courses enrolled in after the Full-Refund Deadline do not qualify for the Tuition Assistance Program.



## IV. DEFINITIONS

A. For the purpose of this policy only, the following definitions shall apply:

1. **Controlled Affiliated Organizations:** Wichita State University Intercollegiate Athletic Association, Inc., Wichita State University Union Corporation, Wichita State University Innovation Alliance, Inc., and WSIA Investments Corporation.
2. **Benefit-Eligible:** An Employee who holds a permanent, half-time equivalency (0.5 FTE) or greater position with the University as a faculty member, an unclassified professional, university support staff, or other ICAA staff member.
3. **Employee:** An individual who provides services to the University and/or the ICAA on a regular basis in exchange for compensation and receives a W-2 for such services. This includes temporary and part-time Employees.
4. **Faculty Member:** All Employees who have teaching/research/library responsibilities of 50% or more and hold a half-time equivalency (0.5 FTE) or greater, including temporary faculty, probationary faculty, non-tenured track faculty, tenured faculty, contingent unclassified professionals, provisional unclassified professionals, and regular unclassified professionals (who have the e-class designation of FA or F2).
5. **Full-Refund Deadline:** A deadline set by the University each semester for when full-semester courses must be dropped in order to receive a 100% tuition refund.
6. **Non-Controlled Affiliated Organizations:** Wichita State University Foundation and Alumni Engagement.
7. **University:** Wichita State University.

## V. ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE

A. **Applications.** To apply for the Tuition Assistance Program, Employees must submit the WSU Tuition Assistance Application to Human Resources by the specified deadline for each semester, which is provided on the Tuition Assistance Program Policies webpage. Late applications will be denied and there will be no exceptions.

~~A.B.~~ **Eligibility Determination.** Human Resources, in collaboration with Financial Aid, will determine eligibility for applicants of the ~~tuition assistance program~~ Tuition Assistance Program.

~~B. — Employees must submit a completed application form to Human Resources by the specified deadline for each semester. Late~~

## **VI. APPLICABLE LAWS AND ADDITIONAL RESOURCES**